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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
THE MEMBERS OF
WALSO SOLAR SOLUTION PVT. LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Walso Solar Solution Private
Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash
Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policy and other
explanatory information ( hereinafter referred to as ‘the financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act.
2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025. and
its profit including other comprehensive Income its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the ~Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial
statements.




Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we
read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these  financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities:
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating eftectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance.
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(1 0)
of the Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

x Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements.

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentaﬁons, or the override of internal control:

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of

the Act we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

4 Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate.
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable

user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of




our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit, we report that the Provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable on the company.

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the
Annexure ‘A’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
to the extent applicable.

2. A. As required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we report. to the
extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit
of the accompanying financial statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
books of accounts;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid  financial statements comply with Ind AS

specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies ( Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended:

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified
as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section
164(2) of the Act;

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company as on 31 March 2025 and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘B’:

- B With resepct to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies ( Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014.
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanation given to us:



ii.

iii.

iv. (a)

(b)

(c)

Vi.

The company does not have any pending litigation which would
impact its financial position.

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable
losses as at 31 March 2025;

there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

the management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note 37(a) to the Financial statements, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any person or entity, including foreign entities (*the
intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

the management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any person
or entity, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise. that the
Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:
and

Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice
that has caused us to believe that the management representations
under subclauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

No Dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the
Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company.
in respect of financial year commencing on 23" April 2024, have used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have
been operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded
in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect
of the accounting software where such feature is enabled.




C. According to the information and explanation given to us, the managerial
remuneration paid by the Company are within the limits prescribed under
section 197 of the Act.

For Viney Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 012188N)
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Place: Karnal artner

Date: 10/07/2025 M. No. 090739
UDIN : 25090739BMIBCY 7828




ANNEXURE "A’ to Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Walso
Solar Solution Private Limited on the Financial Statements as of and for the vear ended
March 31, 2025 ( Referred to in paragraph 1 of our Audit Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements

i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars.
including quantitative details and situation of Property Plant & Equipment, capital
work-in-progress.  The company has maintained proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant
and equipment, capital work in progress and right-of-use assets under which the assets
are physically verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its
business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the fixed asset has been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies between the
books records and the physical Property Plant & Equipment have been noticed.

(c) Based on records examined by us, the title deeds of all the immoveable properties. are
held in the name of the company.

(d) On the basis of our examination of records of the company, the company has not
revalued any of its property, plant and equipment or intangible assets during the year.
Accordingly reporting under clause 3(1) (d) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

ii. ) According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us
the inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year and in
our opinion, coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business. No
discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed
as compared to the books and records.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and records examined by us.
the Company has been sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of Five crores
Rupees, in aggregate from banks based on the security of fixed assets and current
assets. The quarterly statements, filed by the Company with such banks are not in

_-agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.




iii)

Vi.

(Rs. In Millions)

Name of bank Quarter Particulars | Amount | Amou | Amount of Whether
ended as per nt as Difference | return/Stat
books of | report ement
accounts | edin subsequentl
the y revised
quarte
rly
return
/state
ment
No
Inventory 16l 19759 |57
30 Trade
September | poceivable | 5240 | 67.53 | 15.13
2024
Trade
Payable 27.36 25.48 1.89 S
No
inyentery: - L7 > 19671 | L0
HDFC Bank Declenber Trade
Limited Receivable | 117.38 118.09 | 0.71
2024 T —
rade
Payable 32.22 23.14 | 9.09
I No
DVl o307 169ds 160
March 31, | Trade A
2025 Receivable | 186.43 203.05 | 16.63
Trade
Payable 39.54 44,11 4.57

Based on the books of accounts examined by us and According to the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loan covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions
of clause 3(iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on audit
procedures performed by us, The Company has not granted any loan and provided no
guarantee and security covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act.
2013 and made no investment under section 186 of the Act. Therefore, provisions of
Clause 3(iv) of Order are not applicable to the company.

The Company has not accepted deposits or amounts during the year which are
deemed to be deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act.
2013. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

As informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the

“Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the

activities carried on by the company. Therefore, provisions of clause 3(vi) of the order
are not applicable to the Company.
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vii a)

b)

Viil.

iX.

Based on examination of records of the Company, amount deducted/accrued in the

books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and
Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax. Sales Tax.
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax. cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly deposited by it
with the appropriate authorities during the year. There are no undisputed statutory
dues in arrears as on 31st March 2025 for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable except advance tax Rs. 8.2 Millions.

According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) on
account of any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transaction previously unrecorded as income in the books of accounts.
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year

a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest to any lender during the year.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Wilful
Defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

c) Based on books of accounts examined by us, term loan availed during the
year, was applied for the purpose for which loan was obtained.

d) Accordingly to the information and explanations given to us, and the
procedures performed by us on an overall examination of the  financial
statements of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

e) According to the information and ekplanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company. we report that the
Comparny has no subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate. Therefore. the
provisions of clause 3(ix) (e) and 3(ix) (f) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
Public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x) (a) of the Order is not applicable.

b) During the year the Company has made any preferential allotment of Equity
Shares during the year and same is in accordance with section 62 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and have been used for the purpose they were raised.




X1.

Xil.

Xiil.

X1V.

XV.

XVI.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or convertible
debentures (fully, partial or optionally convertible) and also not made any
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) during the year..

a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and considering the principles of
materiality outlined in the Standard on Auditing, for the purpose of reporting
the true and fair view of the financial statements and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company noticed or reported
during the year nor have we been informed of any such case by the
management during the course of the audit.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, , no report under
Subsection (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.
2014 with the Central Government, during the year .

) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us. the
Company is not a Nidhi Company and therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act are not applicable on the Company. Transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable.
and the details for the same have been disclosed as required by the applicable Indian
accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the Company is not
required to have an internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act.
2013. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, in our opinion, during the
year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with any of its
directors or persons connected with them as referred to in section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section
45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c¢) of the Order is not applicable.




XVvil.

XViil.

XiX.

XX.

Place: Karnal
Date: 10.07.2025

b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions. 2016)
and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xvii) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year and no issue, objection or concern by the outgoing auditor.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions. nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year

from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

The Provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 towards Corporate Socieal
Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For and on behalf of
Viney Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants

RN : 012188N)
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Walso Solar Solution Private Limited on the Financial Statements as of and for the year
ended on March 31, 2025 ( refer to in paragraph 2A(g) of our report on other legal and
regulatory requirements)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Walso Solar
Solution Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our
audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods arc
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
control with reference to financial statements and such internal controls with reference to

For and on behalf of

Viney Goel & Associates

Chartered Accountants
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Place:';karnal
Date: 10.07.2025 M. No. 090739



WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN : U25110HR2024PTC120909 )

Balance Sheet as at March 31st, 2025

(Al amonnts are in Rs. in Millions, unless othermwise stated)

Note No. | As at March 31, 2025
A. |ASSETS
1. |Non current assets
(a) |Property, plant and equipment 3 42.35
(b) [Capital work in progress 4 50.23
(¢) |Financial assets
Other financial assets 5 0.25
(d) [Deferred tax assets (net) 6 1.01
(e) [Other non-current assets 7 11.86
Total non-current assets 105.71
2. |Current assets
(a) |Inventories 8 63.07
(b) |Financial assets
(1) Trade receivables 9 186.43
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 6.54
(¢) [Other current assets il 4.04
Total current assets 260.08
TOTAL ASSETS (1+2) 365.79
B. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. |Equity
(a) |Share capital 12 80.00
(b) |Other equity 13 49.40
Total equity 129.40
Liabilities
2. |Non-current liabilities
(a) [Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 39.71
(b) [Provisions 15 0.68
Total non-current liabilities 40.39
3 |Current Liabilities
(a) |Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 135.79
(i1) Trade payables 17
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 3293
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises 6.06
(111)Other financial liabilities 18 4.00
(b) |Other current liabilities 3 19 8.07
(c) [Provisions 20 0.93
(d) [Current Tax Liabilities 21 8.22
Total current liabilities 196.00
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 365.78
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 1t0 39

As per our report on Fianancial Statement of even date attached
For Viney Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration l}l}?ﬁ}?ﬁ&w Fo
qﬁ‘e & ,q\? \ s
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Partner
Membership No.
Place : Karnal
Date : July 10, 2025

UDIN: 25090739BMIBCY7828

(SANJAY
(Director)
DIN : 10600836
Place : Karnal

Date : July 10, 2025

A)

DIN : 10600837




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN : U25110HR2024PTC120909 )

Statement of Profit and loss for the Period from 23rd April,2024 to March 31st, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Note For the period ended
March 31, 2025
I INCOME
(@) | Revenue from operations 22 720.54
(b) | Other income 23 0.34
Total income (I) 720.87
II EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 24 283.84
Purchase of stock-in-trade 25 283.84
Changes in inventories of finished good and work-in-progress 26 - 38.97
Employee benefits expense 27 18.51
Finance costs 28 9.14
Depreciation and amortization 29 2.39
Other expenses 30 96.07
Total expenses(IT) 654.81
III | Profit/(Loss) before exceptional item and tax (I-II) 66.06
IV | Exceptional Items
IIT | Profit/(Loss) before tax (1I1I-IV) 66.06
IV | Tax expense: 39
(@) | Current tax expense 17.67
(b) | Deferred tax (expense)/credit (1.01)
v Profit for the period (V-VI) 49.40
VI | Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax)
@ | (@) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plan -
- Re-measurement of Equity instrument -
pi'(&ﬁt or loss -
(b) | @) Items that will be reclassified to profit and loss
- Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plan -
loss
Total-Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (VIII) -
VII | Total Comprehensive Income for the period (VII+VIII) 49.40
Earning per equity share having face value of Rs. 10/- each 35
Basic - 6.18
Diluted 6.18
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements 1to 39

As per our report on Fianancial Statement of even date attached

For Viney Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 012188N

Membership No.
Place : Karnal
Date : July 10, 2025

For and on beRalf of Board of Directors of

 WALSO SOLARSOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

Ko

(SANJAY AWN SAL) (SH TA)
(Director) ! (Directo
DIN : 10600836 DIN : 10600837

Place : Karnal
Date : July 10, 2025




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN : U25110HR2024PTC120909 )

Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended March 31, 2025

Al amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital
Particulars As at March 31,2025
No. of Shares Amount
Issued Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the period = -
Share Issued during the period 8,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
Shares Cancelled / extinguished - =
Balance at the end of the reporting period 8,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
Subscribed and paid up Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
Balance at the beginning of the period - =
Share Issued during the period 8,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
Shares Cancelled / extinguished - -
Balance at the end of the reporting period 8,000,000.00 80,000,000.00
B. Other Equity
Other|
Particulars Reserve & Surplus Comprehensive| Total
Income]
Retained Earning]
Profit for the period (A) 49.40 49.40
Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) (B) -
Loral Comprehensive Income for the period (A+B) 49.40 - 49.40
Dividend Paid - - -
As at March 31, 2025 49.40 - 49.40

Retained Earnings

Retained Farnings are accumulated profits/losses incurred and payment of dividend to shareholders if any

I'he accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

\s per our report on Fianancial Statement of even date attached

For Viney Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants

L NOT012488N
0% A N

Firm Registratio

Partner SES
Membership N%??QQ'-\ZE‘?’}V
Place : Karnal Sl
Date : July 10, 2025

For and on pehhlf of Board of Directors of
WALSO S I.{(?(\SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

(SANJA BANSAL) ( PTA)
(Director) ( ct (;—j
DIN : 10600836 DIN : 10600837

Place : Karnal
Date : July 10, 2025




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN : U25110HR2024PTC120909 ) :
Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the Period Ended

Particulars March 31, 2025

. Cash flow from Operating Activities :
Profit / (Loss) before tax 66.06
Adjustments for :
Depreciation & Amortization 2:39
Finance costs 9.14
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes 77.59
Mdévement in Working Capital :

Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (186.43)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (4.04)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (63.07)

ase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 16.29
crease / (Decrease) in Provisions 1.61

Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables 42.99
Cash generated (used in) Operations (115.06)
Direct taxes paid (Net of refunds) 17.67
Net Cash inflow / (outflow) from Operating Activities (132.73)
Cash flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Fixed Assets (44.749)

Investment in Capital work in progress (50.23)
Net increase in Capital Advances (11.86)
Increase/(Decrease) in Security Deposits (0.25)
Net Cash inflow / (outflow) from Investing Activities (107.09)

. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Issue of share capital 80.00
Proceeds from Non-Current Borrowings 34.00
Loan Received form Other Group Companies 5.71

Interest paid 9.14)
Net Proceed/(Repayment) from current borrowings 135.79
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from Financing Activities 246.35
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 6.54
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning-of the period -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer Note 10) 6.54
Note :

I. The above Statement of Cash Flows as been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS — 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”
2. Additional Disclosure required under Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" Refer note no 33.11
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For Viney Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants For and on pehalf of Board of Directors o
Firm Registration N | ‘WALSO'SQLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVAT LIMITED ,
: s
e 4__. (SANJAY, UM&PANSAL) (SHIVA PTA)
COU (Directo LITeCior (Dirkdtor
\ DIN : 10600836 DIN : 10600837
&"y Place : Karnal
Date : July 10, 2025 === Date : July 10, 2025




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN : U25110HR2024PTC120909 )
Statement of Cash Flows for the period ended March 31, 2025

/All amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the Period Ended

Note :

Particulars March 31, 2025

. Cash flow from Operating Activities :
Profit / (Loss) before tax 66.06
Adjustments for :
Depreciation & Amortization 2.39
Finance costs 9.14
Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes 77.59
Movement in Working Capital :
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (186.43)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (4.04)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (63.07)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities 16.29
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 1.61
Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other payables 42.99
Cash generated (used in) Operations (115.06)
Direct taxes paid (Net of refunds) 17.67
Net Cash inflow / (outflow) from Operating Activities (132.73)
Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (44.74)
[nvestment in Capital work in progress (50.23)
Net increase in Capital Advances . (11.86)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Security Deposits (0.25)
Net Cash inflow / (outflow) from Investing Activities (107.09)

. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Issue of share capital 80.00
Proceeds from Non-Current Borrowings 34.00
1.oan Received form Other Group Companies 571
Interest paid 9.14)
Net Proceed/ (Repayment) from current borrowings 135.79
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from Financing Activities 246.35
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 6.54
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the period -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer Note 10) 6.54

{."The above Statement of Cash Flows as been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS — 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”
prep =

2. Additional Disclosure required under Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash Flows" Refer note no 33.11

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

For Viney Goel & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration N

Vineys

Partner

Membership Noxv090739 *
Place : Karnal KAR ‘S\y
,._/”

Date : July 10, 2025

~ DIN : 10600836
_ Place : Karnal
Date : July 10, 2025

For and on pehalf of Board of Directors o

WALSO'S R SOLUTIONS PRIVAT LIMITED
\

(SANJAY UMI}PANSAL) (SHIVA PTA)

(Directo 1660 (Dirkdtor

DIN : 10600837




NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Walso Solar Solution Private Limited (‘Company’) is a private limited company domiciled in
India and was incorporated on 23™ April 2024 under the provisions of the Companies Act
applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is located at Booth No. 197 New
Grain Market Gharaunda. The Company’s CIN U25110HR2024PTC120909. The Company
is manufacturer of solar structure and trades in HDPE Pipes and BOS Kits.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) read with
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Act, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule I1I).

The Board of directors has approved the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,
2025 and authorised for issue on July 10", 2025. However, shareholders have the power to
amend the Financial Statements after issue.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the standalone financial
statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets,
financial liabilities and net defined benefit plans that are measured at fair values as explained
in relevant accounting policies.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability, if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these Financial Statements is determined on such
a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 — Leases, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in Ind AS 2 — Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 — Impairment of
Assets.

These Financial Statements are presented in Indian National Rupee (*0°), which is the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest M1lhons (O
000,000), except when otherwise indicated. e




Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

In the preparation of Financial Statements, the Company makes judgements in the application
of accounting policies; and estimates and assumptions which affects carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future
periods affected.

Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date of Financial Statements, which may cause
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, is in respect of impairment, useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets, valuation of deferred tax assets, provisions and contingent liabilities, fair value
measurements of financial instruments and retirement benefit obligations as disclosed below:

Impairment

The Company estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on future
cash flows after considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future
operating results and growth rates and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions.
The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The cash flows are
discounted using a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation
and amortization expense in future periods.

Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

Provision for warrantee

The Company generally offers 12-18 months warranty for its products, except for certain
projects where the warranty offered may be higher to meet specific project requirements.
Warranty costs are determined as a percentage of sales based on the past trends of the costs
required to be incurred for repairs, replacements, material costs and servicing cost.
Management estimates the related closing provision as at Balance Sheet date for future
warranty claims based on historical warranty claim information, as well as recent trends that
might suggest that past information may differ from future claims. The assumptions made in
current period are consistent with those in the prior year. As the time value of money is not
considered to be material, warranty provisions are not discounted.

Allowances for expected credit loss

The Company makes provision for expected credit losses through appropriate estimations of
irrecoverable amount. The identification of expected credit loss requires use of judgment and
estimates. The Company evaluates trade receivables ageing and makes a provision for those




debts as per the provisioning policy. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and
doubtful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as result of a past event
and it is probable that the outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are not
recognized in the Financial Statements.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Company’s retirement benefit obligations are subject to number of assumptions
including discount rates, inflation and salary growth. Significant assumptions are required
when setting these criteria and a change in these assumptions would have a significant impact
on the amount recorded in the Company’s balance sheet and the statement of profit and loss.
The Company sets these assumptions based on previous experience and third-party actuarial
advice.

Classification of Leases

The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The classification of the
leasing arrangement as a finance lease or operating lease is based on an assessment of several
factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease
term, lessee’s option to purchase and estimated certainty of exercise of such option,
proportion of lease term to the asset’s economic life, proportion of present value of minimum
lease payments to fair value of leased asset and extent of specialized nature of the leased
asset.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of the Financial
Statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently to all
the periods presented in this Financial Statements, unless otherwise indicated.

a) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle:

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All the other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:




b)

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are classified as non-current assets and non-current liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of the assets for processing and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months
as its operating cycle.

Property, plant, and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost of acquisition or construction less
accumulated depreciation and/ or accumulated impairment, if any. The cost includes its
purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies (for
Leasehold improvements and Vehicles, Goods and Services Tax is not availed but added
to the cost of acquisition or construction), freight and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use; any trade discounts and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible property, plant and equipment are
added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

The cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use at the balance
sheet date are disclosed as capital work in progress.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment, outstanding at
each balance sheet date are disclosed as 'capital advances' under 'other current assets'.

Where a significant component (in terms of cost) of an asset has an economic useful life

shorter than that of its corresponding asset, the component is depreciated over its shorter
life.

Assets individually costing up to Rupees five thousand are not capitalized.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives

Depreciation is provided on straight line method over the estimated useful life of fixed
assets as per the useful life prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act.
2013. Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata
basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale / deletion of
property, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard
of property, plant and equipment as the case may be. In case of impairment, if any.
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining
useful life.

Leasehold improvements are being amortised over the duration of the lease, or estimated
useful life of the assets, whichever is lower.
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Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated
amortization and impairment, if any. Intangible assets purchased are measured at cost as
at the date of acquisition, as applicable, less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment, if any. The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on
a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other
economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological
advances), and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected
future cash flows from the asset.

Amortisation of intangible assets

Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The management has
estimated life of software 5 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an assets or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset.
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time

“value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of

disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available
fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories. are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

For assets an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the assets or CGU's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying

amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed=the carrying
/Z‘ﬁ\ e
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amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case. the
reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Borrowing and Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement
of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Borrowings are derecognised from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a borrowings that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed. is
recognised in Statement of profit and loss as other gains/(losses). Borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes
exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying
assets are capitalised as part of the cost of the assets up to the date the asset is ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows:

Raw materials, stock in trade and stores and spares - Lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Materials and other items held for
use in the production of inventories are not written down below costs, if finished goods in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost.

Work-in-progress and finished goods - Lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes direct materials, labour and a proportion of manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less
estimated costs of completion and to make the sale. However, materials and other items
held for use in the production of finished goods or providing services are not written
down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected
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to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on
item-by-item basis.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration)

received or receivable when control of the goods is transferred to the customer and there

are no unfulfilled performance obligations as per the contract with the customers. The

Company recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation in accordance

with the provisions of contract with the customer. This is achieved when;

* effective control of goods along with significant risks and rewards of ownership has
been transferred to customer;

* the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Company; and

* the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Revenue represents net value of goods and services provided to customers after deducting
for certain incentives including, but not limited to discounts, volume rebates, etc. For
incentives offered to customers, the Company makes estimates related customer
performance and sales volume to determine the total amounts earned and to be recorded
as deductions. The estimate is made in such a manner, which ensures that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur. The actual amounts may differ from these estimates and are accounted for
prospectively.

The Company considers shipping and handling activities as costs to fulfil] the promise to
transfer the related products and the customer payments for shipping and handling costs
are recorded as a component of revenue. In certain customer contracts. shipping and
handling services are treated as a distinct separate performance obligation and the
Company recognizes revenue for such services when the performance obligation is
completed. :

Revenue is net of Goods and Service Tax. No element of significant financing is deemed
present as the sales are made with a credit term, which is consistent with market practice.

Revenue (other than sale) is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Export
incentives are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the conditions and the incentives will be received.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Contract assets

Contract asset is right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer and performance obligation satisfied. If the Company performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment
is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Upon
completion of the attached condition and acceptance by the customer, the amounts
recognised as contract assets is reclassified to trade receivables upon invoicing. A
receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration from the customer. If customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer. a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e.. transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Trade receivables
A trade receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (e
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Foreign currencies

The Company’s Financial Statements are presented in INR, which is also its functional
currency.

Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency closing rate of exchange at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a forei gn currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of
non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit or loss are also
recognised in OCI or statement of profit or loss, respectively).
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Income Taxes

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted in India. at the reporting date.

Current tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit or loss is recognised
outside statement of profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).
Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI
or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities if, and only if, a legally
enforceable right exists to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. the carry
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets arc
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all the taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced

.to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to

allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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Employee benefits

Short-term benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the service rendered by employees are recognised during the period when
the employee renders the services.

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund.
The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an
expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Company’s contribution to state defined contribution plans namely Employee State
Insurance is made in accordance with the Statute, and are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them to the contribution.

Defined benefits plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. Gratuity is a defined benefit
obligation.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the
projected unit credit method. In respect of post-retirement benefit re-measurements
comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets.
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are
not reclassified to statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment
occurs or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised.

whichever is earlier.

Other long-term benefits

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months. is
treated as short-term employee benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Actuarial gains/ losses on the
compensated absences are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss and are
not deferred. :

Leases

Company as a lessee

The Company assesses if a contract is or contains a lease at inception of the contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period time in exchange for consideration.
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The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the commencement
date, except for short-term leases of twelve months or less and leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value, which are expensed in the statement of operations on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease, or, if not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing rate specific to the
country, term and curreicy of the contract. Lease payments can include fixed payments.
variable payments that depend on an index or rate known at the commencement date. as
well as any extension or purchase options, if the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise these options. The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method and remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related right-of-use asset when there is a change in future lease payments in case of
renegotiation, changes of an index or rate or in case of reassessments of options.

The right-of-use asset comprises, at inception, the initial lease liability, any initial direct
costs and, when applicable, the obligations to refurbish the asset, less any incentives
granted by the lessors. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated, on a straight-
line basis, over the lease term, if the lease transfers the ownership of the underlying asset
to the Company at the end of the lease term or, if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the lessee will exercise a purchase option, over the estimated useful life of the
underlying asset. other are also subject to testing for impairment if there is an indicator
for impairment. Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease
liabilities are expensed to the statement of operations in the period in which the events or
conditions which trigger those payments occur. In the statement of financial position
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are classified respectively as part of property, plant
and equipment and short-term/long-term debt.

Government grant and subsidies

Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached

. conditions. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment

are included in noncurrent liabilities as deferred income and are credited to statement of
profit and loss on a systematic basis over the expected lives of the related assets to match
them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate and presented within other
income.

Government grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, as income or deduction from the relevant expense. on a
systematic basis in the periods in which the expense is recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and
short<term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.




n) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will
probably lead to an outflow of economic resources and amounts can be estimated reliably.
Timing or amount of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises when
there is a presence of a legal or constructive commitment that has resulted from past
events, for example, legal disputes or onerous contracts. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including
the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Provisions are
discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.

Any reimbursement that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party
with respect to the obligation is recognised as a separate asset. However, this asset may
not exceed the amount of the related provision.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.

In those cases where the outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations
is considered improbable or remote, no liability is recognised.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

* Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or

e Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when inflow of economic benefits is
probable, related asset is disclosed.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing net profit or loss for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year and for all periods presented is adjusted for events.
such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares. that have
changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net profit or loss for the year
attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company and weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the
weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion
of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for
the proceeds receivable had the equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.c. the
average market value of the outstanding equity shares).
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Fair value measurement

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of
methods and assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each
reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow
analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair
value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be
realized. For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance
Sheet date and which are not carried at fair value, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability, if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety.
which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices /net asset value (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1. that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker. Chief operating decision maker reviews
the performance of the Company according to the nature of products manufactured.
traded and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit
that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of geographical
segments is based on the locations of customers.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one
entity and a financial liability or equity instruments of another entity. Financial
instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign exchange forward contracts.
embedded derivatives in the host contract, etc.

Initial recognition and measurement - Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the-
financial instrument. Financial instruments (except trade receivables) are measured
initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value
through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value. Trade receivables are
measured at their transaction price unless it contains a significant financing component in
accordance with Ind AS 115 for pricing adjustments embedded in the contract.
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Subsequent measurement [Non-derivative financial assets]-

i. Financial assets carried at amortised cost: A financial asset is measured at the
amortised cost, if both the following conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

» Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

ii. Financial assets at fair value through Profit & Loss (FVTPL) : Financial assets.
which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, are
classified as at FVTPL. Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Subsequent measurement [Non-derivative financial liabilities]- Subsequent to initial
recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Trade Receivable

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset, except trade receivable
which are recognised at transaction price as per Ind AS 115, or financial liability is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is the
weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is
required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension)
over the expected life of the assets.

e Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

Trade receivables: In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified
approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

Other financial assets: In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if
the credit risk on those financial assets has increased signiﬁcantl;'/ﬁifl‘jf(?"
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recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition. the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit
losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default
occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment. the
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance
sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

De-recognition of financial assets: A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement: Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities: A financial liability is de-recognized when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments: Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset.

and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal

right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis. 1o
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Event after the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company’s
position at the end of the reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in the Financial
Statements. Events after the end of the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes the Financial Statements when material.

Standards issued but not yet effective

Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts

On August 12, 2024, MCA announced the amendments to the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, applicable from August 12, 2024, as bclo:/x;

o




The amendment outlines scenarios where Ind AS 117 does not apply. These include
warranties from manufacturers, dealers, or retailers related to goods or services and
employer obligations from employee benefit plans. It also excludes retirement benefit
obligations from defined benefit plans and contractual rights or obligations tied to future
use of non-financial items, such as certain license fees and variable lease payments.
However, the Group is not engaged in insurance contracts, hence do not have any impact
on the Restated Consolidated financial Information.

Accounting for sale and leaseback transaction the books of seller - lessee -
Amendments to Ind AS 116

On September 09, 2024, MCA announced the amendments to the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, applicable from September 09, 2024, as follows:

The amendment require seller-lessee shall determine 'lease payments' or 'revised lease
payments' in a way that the seller-lessee would not recognise any amount of the gain or
loss that relates to the right of use retained by the seller-lessee. These rules aim to
streamline accounting processes and ensure compliance with the updated Ind AS
requirements. However, the Group is not engaged in sale and lease back transactions.
hence do not have any impact on the Restated Consolidated financial Information.

As at 31 March 2025, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the
existing standards which are applicable to the company.




"WVALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2025
(All amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
Note No. 3: Property, plant and equipment

w w
N =

3.4

Gross Block Land Computers Furrfnure and Vehicles Qfﬁce Plant.and Total
Fixtures Equipments Machinery

\ddition during the period 31.06 1.24 0.32 0.17 0.76 11.19 44.74

Sold/discarded during the

period = = = = = = =

Cost as at March 31, 2025 31.06 1.24 0.32 0.17 0.76 11.19 44.74

i % ffi Plant and

Accumulated depreciation Land Computers Furrfnure and Vehicles 0 = R Total
Fixtures Equipments Machinery

Depreciation for the Period - 0.45 0.06 0.03 0.26 1:59 2.39

Deductions - - - - - - -

Accumulated depreciation as

at March 31, 2025 = 0.45 0.06 0.03 0.26 1.59 2.39

Net carrying value - =

Ner carrying value as at

March 31, 2025 31.06 0.79 0.26 0.14 0.50 9.60 42.35

Assets pledged and hypothecated against borrowings. Refer Note No. 14 & 16

There were no revaluation carried out by the Company during the period and previous period reported above.

Borrowing cost capitalised / transfer to capital work in progress March 31, 2025 : (] 0.06 million, . Interest rate @ 9.25% used to capitalise, has been

determined based on weighted average interest rate applicable to the borrow

Usetul Life of Computers has been taken as 3 years, furniture and fixtures has been taken as 10 years, vehicles has been taken as 10 years, office

cquipments has been taken as 5 years and plant and machinery has been taken as 15 years.




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

(All amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

4 : Capital work-in-progress

Capital work in

Particulars Total
progress
Additions 50.23 50.23
Capitalised during the Year - -
As at March 31, 2025 50.23 50.23
Electrical
= ffi
Gross Block Building Software Plan.t & Installation and O o Total
WIP Machinery g Equipments
Fittings

Addition during the Year 45.31 1.67 0.97 1.96 0.32 50.23
Sold/discarded during the Year - - -
As at March 31, 2025 45.31 1.67 0.97 1.96 0.32 50.23

4.1. Ageing schedule of Capital work-in-progress

Particulars

As at 31.03.2025

Projects in progress

<1 year 50.23
1-2 year =
2-3 year -
>3 year -
Projects in progress (total) 50.23
Projects temporarily suspended =
Detail of expenses capitalised during the period
Particulars As at 31.03.2025
Finance costs 0.59
Employee benefit expenses =
Flectricity expenses 0.03
Total 0.62

3A.2. The Company does not have any material project which is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan

and hence capital work in progress completion schedule is not required to be reported.

As at March 31, 2025

Project Less than 1 Year 1-2 Year 2-3 Years 3-5 Years More than 5

Years
Buildings 45.31 - - - -
Software -WIP 1.67 - - - -
Plant & Machinery 0.97 - - - -
Flectrical Installation and Fittings 1.96 - - - -
Office Equipments 0.32 - - - -

Total

50.23




WAL= SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Not:s annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements
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(Al amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Other Non-Current Financial Assets

(Unsecured, considered good at amortised cost unless otherwise stated)

Reliance Jio Infocomm Deposit
Deposit with NSDL
Security Deposit with Pollution Deparment

Deferred Tax Assets ( Net)
Deferred Tax Liability being tax impact on -
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Total (a)
Deferred Tax Assets being tax impact on -
Property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets

Fxpenses allowable on payment basis under the Income Tax Act

Total (b)
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) (a) —(b)

Movement in Deferred Tax Liailities( Assets)

As at
March 31, 2025
0.01
0.05
0.20
0.25
As at

March 31, 2025

0.06
0.95

1.01
1.01

|

Assets
Recongised in Recognised in
Particulars P&L As at March 312025
Deferred Tax liability being tax impact on -
Property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets and right of use assets - =
Sub total (a) : - -
Deferred Tax Assets being tax impact on - -
ixpenses allowable on payment basis under the Income Tax Act 0.95 0.95
Property, plant and equipment, other intangible assets and right of use assets 0.06 0.06
Sub total (b) 1.01 1.01
Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b) (1.01) (1.01)
As at
Other non-current assets March 31, 2025
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capirtal advances 11.86
Total - 11.86
As at

: March 31, 2025
Inventories
Raw materials = 24.10
Work in Progress 7.81
Finished goods (Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Finished goods - Stock in Trade 5.92
Finished goods - Others 15.24
Total 63.07
Inventories are hypothecated to secure borrowings. ( Refer Note No 14.1 & 16.1)

FarTe s AR Al e
March 31, 2025

Trade receivables
Secured, considered good -
Unsecured, cc sndidered good* 186.46
Which have significant increase in Credit Risk -
Credit impaired 2
Sub Total 186.46
Less : Allowance for credit impaired -
Total 186.43




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notcs annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements

(Al amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Trade receivables are hypothecated to secure borrowings. Refer Note No. 14.1 & 16.1
No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Further no trade receivables are due

from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, or director or member.

‘Trade Receivables includes amount receivable from Related Party Oswal Pumps ltd.Rs. 165.82 million.

‘I'rade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days.

‘I'rade Receivables ageing schedule:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of ayment

As at March 31, 2025

Less than 6
months

6 months - 1
period

1-2 periods

2-3 periods

More than 3 periods

Total

Undisputed

Considered good

186.42

0.00

186.43

Which have significant increase in credit

Credit impaired

Disputed

Considered good

Which have significant increase in credit

Credit impaired

Total

186.42

0.00

186.43

There are no unbilled receivables.

Cash and bank balances
Cash on hand

Balance with banks
-Current accounts

Total

Other current assets

(Unsccured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advances for supplies and services
GST Input Credits

Other Receivables

Total

As at
March 31, 2025
0.04
6.50
6.54
As at
March 31, 2025
3.54
0.29
0.21

4.04




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements

(ALl amonnts are in Rs. in Millions, nnless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Nos . (Rs.)
Share Capital
a  Authorised shares
Equity share capital of Rs 10 each
As at the beginning of the period - —
Increase/(decrease) during the period 8,000,000 80
As at the end of the period 8,000,000 80
b  Issued share capital
Equity share capital of Rs 10 each
As at the beginning of the period = :
Add: Issued during the period 8,000,000 80
As at the end of the period 8,000,000 80
¢ Paid up capital
Iiquity share capital of Rs 10 each
As at the beginning of the period - =
Add: Issued during the period 8,000,000 80
As at the end of the period 8,000,000 80
d  Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to the shares
‘The Company has only one class of equity share having a par value of Rs. 10 each. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders
of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the
sharcholders. There is no restriction on distribution of dividend. However, same is subject to the
approval of the sharcholders in the Annual General Meeting.
~ Asat As at
March 31,2025 | March 31, 2025
No. of Shares % holding
¢ Details of equity sharcholding more than 5% shares in the company
Anil Kumar 359,775 4.50%
Narender Nath Goela 399,750 5.00%
Oswal Pumps Limited 3,080,075 38.50%
Sanjay Bansal 1,600,000 20.00%
Shivam Gupta 2,560,400 32.01%
As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other declarations received from
shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.
As at As at
March 31,2025 |March 31, 2025 % change during the
financial period 24-25
No. of Shares % holding % change
£ Details of equity shares held by promoters in the compan‘;;'
Anil Kumar 359775 4.50% 4.50%
Narender Nath Goela 399,750 5.00% 5.00%
Oswal Pumps Limited 3,080,075 38.50% 38.50%
Sanjay Bansal 1,600,000 20.00% 20.00%
Shivam Gupta 2,560,400 32.01%
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Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements
(Al amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

13

14

14.1

As at
March 31, 2025

Other Equity

Retained Earnings

Balance as at the beginning of the period =
Add: Profit for the period 49.40

Add: Other comprehensive income for the period =

Balance as at the period end 49.40

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represents undistributed profits of the company which can be distributed to its equity sharcholders in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Act,2013.

As at
March 31, 2025
Borrowings( Non Current)
Secured
Term Loan
(1) from Bank 38.88
38.88
Less: Current Maturities
Amount disclosed under the head" Short Term borrowings:
(1) From a Bank 4.89
34.00
Unsecured
From Corporates
Shoyra Trading Co. Pyt. Ltd. 5.71
39.71

The company was sanctioned a Term Loan of Rs. 627 lacs from HDFC Bank Limited at interest rate of 9.25% repayable in 84 EMI of Rs 1,065,527 each. The
maturity pattern of the loan repayment within 12 Months is Rs. 4.89 Million, Between 1 Year to 2 Year is Rs. 7.90 Million , Between 3to 5 Years is Rs. 28.43
Million and Beyond 5 Years is Rs. 21.54 Millions. The project is under implementation therefore, the entire term loan has not been disbursed upto March 31,
2025. Secured primarily against hypotheciation of stock, Book Debts,respective plant, Machinery, Equipment, tool and Mortgage of Land and building under
construction of the company situated at Village Staondi, Tehsil Gharaunda, Distt. Karnal . Secured primarily against hypotheciation of stock, Book Debts, L.c
Sccurity and Mortgage of Land and building under construction of the company situated at Village Staondi, Tehsil Gharaunda, Distt. Karnal . The loan is also

sceurerd by Personal Gurantee of the Directors and mortgage of personal properties of Directors Sh. Sanjay Bansal and his brother Rajiv Bansal.

As at
= March 31, 2025
Provisions ( Non- Current)
Employees Benefits( Refer Note no 33.4)
Provision for Gratuity 0.21
Provision for Warranty = 0.47
0.68

Movement of provisions for warranty during the year as required by Ind AS 37 (Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets)
Provision for warranty -

Opening Balance (Non-current and Current) -
Addition during the year 0.59
Reversed / utilised during the year -
Closing Balance (Non-current and Current) 0.59
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1

16 Borrowings ( Current
I'rom Banks:

Sccured

(Al amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

Working Capital Loans ( Refer Note 16.1 below)

Current Maturities of non current borrowings

I'rom Banks

As at
March 31, 2025

130.90

4.89

135.79

Loan of Rs. 130.90 Million from a bank is Secured primarily against hypotheciation of stock, Book Debts,respective plant, Machinery, Equipment, tool and

Mortgage of Land and building under construction of the company situated at Village Staondi, Tehsil Gharaunda, Distt. Karnal . The loan is also securerd by
Personal Gurantee of the Directors and mortgage of personal properties of Directors Sh. Sanjay Bansal and his brother Rajiv Bansal. Secured primarily against
hypotheciation of stock, Book Debts, Lc Security and Mortgage of Land and building under construction of the company situated at Village Staondi, Tehsil

Gharaunda, Distt. Karnal .
Bansal and his brother Rajiv Bansal.

16.2

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current

assets. The quarterly returns / statements (including revised) filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of accounts of

the Company except as follows:

The loan 1s also securerd by Personal Gurantee of the Directors and mortgage of personal properties of Directors Sh. Sanjay

Name of bank Quarter Particulars Amount as per Amount as | Amount of Difference | Reasons for
ended books of accounts | reported in the Difference
quarterly
return/statemen
t
30 Inventory 91.82 97.59 5.77 |Periodic  book
September [Trade Receivable 52.40 67.53 15.13 |closure entries
2024 |Trade Payable 27.36 25.48 1.89
31 Inventory 97.72 96.71 1.01 |Periodic  book
HDFC Bank Limited December |Trade Receivable 117.38 118.09 0.71 |closure entries
2024 |Trade Payable 32.22 23.14 9.09
Inventory 63.07 69.46 639 |Statements  are
March 31, e bl 186.43 203.05 16.63 [submitted
2025 having different
Trade Payable 39.54 4411 457 |date 1nstead of]
17 Trade Payables
Creditors for Supplies and Services
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises ( Refer Note No 33.3) 32.93
Due to Others 6.06
38.99
Trade Payables ageing schedule: Outstanding for following periods from Invoice Date
As at March 31, 2025 Less than 6 More than 3
months 6 months - 1 Year |1-2 Year 2-3 Year Year Total
Due to MSME
Considered good 32.93 - - - 32.93
Disputed - - - - - -
Due to Others
Considered good 6.04 0.02 - - - 6.06
Disputed - - - - - -
Total 38.97 0.02 - - - 38.99

\¥
A

US = ’f;
/




WALSC ~OLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes unnexed to and forming part of Financial Statements
(Al amounts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31, 2025
18 Other current financial liabilities
Creditors for Capital Goods 4.00
4.00
18 Other current liabilities
lixpenses payables 1.85
Statutory Dues Payables 5.61
Other Payables 0.61
8.07
20 Provisions (Current)
Employee benefits
Provision for Leave Encashment 0.26
Provision for Bonus 0.55
Provision for Warranty Claims 0.12
0.93

21 Current tax liabilities (Net)
Provision for tax (Net) 8.22

8.22




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements
(All amonnts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

for the Year ended March

31, 2025
22 Revenue from Operations
Sale of Product
Trading Goods 370.70
Manufacturing Goods 349.84
720.54

22.1 The Company is primarily in the business of Trading of BOS and manufacturing of solar . All sales are made at a
point in time and revenue recognised upon satisfaction of the performance obligations which is typically upon
dispatch/ installation. The Comapny has a credit evaluation policy based on which the credit limits for the trade
receivables are established, the Company does not give significant credit period resulting in no significant financing
component.

22.2 Receivables, assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Trade receivables 186.43

Contract Liabilities - Advances received from / credit balance of
customers

22.3 Movement in advances / credit balances of customers outstanding as at the end of the year :

Opening Balance
Less : Revenue recognized / adjusted during the year : =
Add : Advance received during the year not recognized as revenue

720.54

Amounts included in contract liabilities (including on account of
credit notes) at the end of the year 720.54

22.4 The Company presented disaggregated revenue based on the type of goods sold to customers and sales channel.
Revenue is recognised for goods transferred at a point of time. The Company believes that the revenue
disaggregation best depicts point in time.

Disaggregated revenue information
The disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers is as under:
Domestic customers - 720.54

Export customers

Revenue from operations 720.54

22.5 Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss:
Revenue as per contract price 720.54
Less: Discounts, incentives etc.

Revenue from operations 720.54

*excludes other operating income.

22.6 The Company has given warranties for goods sold, undertaking to repair or replace the items that fail to perform
satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made as on March 31, 2025 , represents the amount of the
expected cost of meeting such obligation of rectification / replacement. Refer note 17.1 and 25.




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements
(Al amonnts are in Rs. in Millions, unless othermwise stated)

for the period ended March

31, 2025
23 Other income
Other Write off 0.29
Discount Received 0.05
0.34
24 Cost of materials consumed
Opening Stock
Add: Purchases of Raw material 302.57
Add: Direct Expenses 937
Less: Closing Stock 24.10
283.84
25 Purchases of Stock in Trade
Cost of Trading Materials Sold
Purchase of Trading Materials 283.84
283.84
26 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress
Inventories as at end of the period
Finished goods 31.16
Work in Progress 7.81
Sub Total 38.97
Inventories as at beginning of the period
Finished goods
Raw material -
Sub Total -
Change in Inventories - 38.97
27 Employee benefit Expenses
Employee Salaries 15.79
Statutory Expenses 213
Employee Welfare 0.59
18.51
28 Finance Cost
Interest Cost relating to
Banks 715
Others 2.19
Interest Paid to Income tax Department 0.03
Other Borrowing Cost 0.36
Less : Transfer to capital work in progress / capitalised 0.59
9.14
29 Depreciation and amortization expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment - 2:39

2.39




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements
(All amonnts are in Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

for the period ended March

31, 2025
30 Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts 4.19
Power and fuel 1.77

Repair and maintainance
- Plant and machinery 1.82

- Others

Job Work 48.63
Audit Fees 0.30
Bad debts 0.18
Cleaning expense 0.03
Commission 0.22
Dharam kanta Charges 0.08
Freight Outward 31.05
Festival exp 0.12
GST Exp 0.02
Insurance Expense 0.02
Legal and professional 2.23
Loading/Unloading Exp 1.96
Misc exp 0.01
Telephone Exp & Internet Expense 0.05
Travelling and Conveyance 0.26
Software Expenses : 0.13
Packing Goods 0.15
Printing and Stationery & Courier charges 0.18
Pollution exp 0.02
Office Exp 0.04
Lease Rent 1.41
Warranty Claims Provision 0.59
Security Expense 0.61
96.07

31 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 towards Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable
to the Company.

32 Tax Expense

Current tax 5 17.67
Deferred tax ( Expense)/Credit (1.01)
Tax Expense reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss 16.66

Reconciliation of tax expenses and accounting Profit

Accounting Profit / (Loss) before tax 66.06
Applicable tax rate 25.168%
Computed Tax Expense 16.63
Effect on tax due to expenses allowed on payment basis 0.99
Effect of Depreciation on profit - 0.06

Income tax reported in the statement of profit'and loss 17.67




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of Financial Statements
(Al amonnts are Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)

33.1 Earning Per Share (EPS)

The following table reflects the income and shares data used in computation of the basic and diluted
earnings per share:

For the period ended

Particulars March 31 2025
a.  Profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders 49.40
Nominal value of equity shares in Rs. 10.00
No of shares at the beginning of the period Nos. 8,000,000

Add: Tssued / to be issued during the period

Less: Cancelled/buyback during the period
No of shares at the end of the period 8,000,000
d.  Weighted average no. of shares outstanding Nos. 8,000,000

Weighted Average number of Equity Shares post split and bonus used

e.  as denominator in calculating Basic Earnings Per Share (B) 8,000,000
Weighted average no. of shares outstanding for diluted earnings per

g share 8,000,000

h.  Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share in Rs. 6.18

“There have been no transactions involving Equity shares or Potential Equity shares between the reporting
date and the date of approval of these financial statements that would have an impact on the outstanding
weighted average number of equity shares as at the period end.

33.2  Contingent Liabilities and Commitments:

@) There is no contingent liability at the end of the year.

(i1) Commitments

As on
Particulars March 31, 2025

Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account (Net
A of advances) not provided for 22.03

33.3 Trade Payables under MSME Development Act, 2006
A Based on the information available as identified by the management there are certain vendors who have confirmed
that they are covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. Disclosures relating

to dues of Micro and Small enterprises under section 22 of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006", are given below:

As On March
Particulars ~ 31, 2025
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of each accounting year
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1.59
- Interest due thercon 0.003

The amount of interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting year

"The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
hawe been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006.

"The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year; and

"The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23.




WALSO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes - nnexed to and forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Note No. 33.4 : Employee Defined Benefits :

\.  Defined Contribution Plans
"The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and superannuation fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. Under the plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan
to fund the benefits.

As on March 31,
2025

Particulars

i L(Inntribu[i(m to Govt. Provident fund 0.55

B.  Other long-term benefits
The Compensated absences cover the Company liability for earned leave. The company has a policy to pay to the employees entire earned leave
against compensated absenses every year to its employees. The company has no obligation against the compensed absences cover for the
company liability for earned leave. Hence neither any provision is required to be made nor provided for in the books of accounts.

Defined Benefit Obligation (Unfunded)

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service
for a period of 5 years are cligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary
per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service subject to maximum of Rs. 2 millions at the
time of sepeartion of from the company.

‘I'he most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March
31, 2025. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

As on March 31,
2025

Particulars

I. Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO)
Present value of DBO at the beginning of period -
Current service cost 0.21
Interest cost -
Past Service Cost -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses =
Benefits paid =
Present value of DBO at the end of period 0.21

I1. Reconciliation of fair value of assets and defined benefit obligation
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 0.21
Iair value on plan assets -

Net asset/ (liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet (0.21)

[11. Expenses recognised during the year in Statement of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 0.21
Past service cost -

Net Interest cost =
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 0.21

[V. Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Re- measurements of the net defined benefit liability/ (assets)
Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year on Defined Benefit Obligation -
Actuarial (gain)/loss on Plan Assets (excluding amount included in net interest expense) -

Total =




WALSGO SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes : anexed to and forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

\'. Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate (%) 6.79%
Future salary escalation (per annum) (%) 8.00%
Mortality table (TALM) 2012-14
\'l.  Sensitivity analysis
liffect of change in discount rate - 0.50 % increase 0.20
liffect of change in discount rate - 0.50% decrease 0.22
Iiffect of change in salary inflation - 1 % increase 0.24
Iiffect of change in salary inflation - 1 % decrease 0.19
liffect of change in withdrawal rate - 5 % increase 0.16
Iiffect of change in withdrawal rate - 5 % decrease 0.29
‘T'he sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
VIl Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation :
Particulars Sson Macch 31,
2025
Within next twelve months 0.00
Between one to five years 0.00
Beyond five years 0.53
0.53
\'I11. Expected contribution for the next Annual reporting period.
Service Cost 2.43
Expected Expense for the next annual reporting period 2.43
IX. Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary over time. Thus,
the Company \is exposed to various risks in providing the above gratuity benefit which are as follows:

Interest Rate risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the
ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short-term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to non availability of
¢nough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.

Salary Escalation Risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan
participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine
the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Demographic Risk: The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Group is exposed to the
risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumption.

&
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WAL O SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are Rs. in Millions, unless otherwise stated)
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Related Party Disclosures
(to the extent identified by the management)

List of Related Parties

Associate Company Oswal Pumps Limited
Holding Company of Associate Shorya Trading Co Private Limited
Key Management Personnel Mr. Sanjay Bansal, Director
M. Shivam Gupta, Director
Relatives of Key Management Personnel M. Rajiv Bansal ( Brother of Sanjay Bansal)
Person Having Significant Influence Mr. Vivek Gupta, CMD Oswal Pumps Limited

Transactions with related parties during the period

Particulars SR
2025
Interest to Shorya Trading Company Private Limited 0.36
Sales to Oswal Pumps ltd. 644.77
Purchase from Oswal Pumps ltd. 44.37
Share Capital Received From Oswal Pumps Ltd. 30.80
Share Capital Received From Sanjay Bansal 16.00
Share Capital Received From Shivam Gupta 25.60
Share Capital Received From Anil Kumar 3.60
Share Capital Received From Narender Nath Goela 4.00
]case rent Paid to Vivek Gupta 1.41
Remuneration to Shivam Gupta, Director 2:3
l.oan Received from Shorya Trading Co Private Limited 17.85
l.oan Repaid to Shorya Trading Co Pvt Ltd e 1281
Closing balances
Particulars =
2025
Shivam Gupta - Director Salary Payable 0.07
Shorya Trading co. pvt. Ltd. 571
Oswal Pumps ltd. - Trade Receivables 165.82)

Note
\ll transactions with related parties are made on the terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and with

in the ordinary course of business. Outstanding balances at respective year ends are unsecured and settlement is generally done

in cash.
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Financial Instruments- Fair Value and Risk Management

"I'he Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available. The fair
values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Financial Instruments by Category

Particulars As At March 31, 2025

FVTPL FVOCI At Amortised Cost
Financial Assets - Measured at amortized cost
Investment- Non Current - - -
I'rade Receivables - - 186.43
Cash and cash equivalents = - 6.54
lLoans =S = =
Total = - 192.97
Financial Liabilities- Measured at amortized cost -
I'rade Payables = - 38.99
Total - - 38.99

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their
farr value largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments,

Fair Value Hierarchy

T'his section explains the judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that ace:

a. Recognised and measured at fair value and

b. Measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.

"'o provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the
three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1: Mierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock
exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
mputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
unlisted equity securities.

There are no transfers between level 1 and level 2 during the period.
Valuation technique used to determine fair value
The following methods and assumptions were used to

lair value of cash and bank and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these mstruments.

Iair value of borrowings from banks and other financial liabilities, are estimated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for
debt on similar terms and remaining maturities.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis, where applicable.
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WAL 50 SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

: Financial risk management objectives and policies

Risk Management Framework
"I'he Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board of
dircctors has established the processes to ensure that executive management controls risks through the mechanism of property defined framework.
"'he Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

‘The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit risk;
- Liquidity risk; and

- Market risk

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.
T'he Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing / investing activities, including deposits
with banks, and foreign exchange transactions. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty.

Trade receivables

"I'he Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors
that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry. Trade receivables are consisting of very limited customers.
Majority of sales is to holding company. However, the Management has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company’s standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes market check,
industry feedback, past financials and external ratings, if they are available. Sale limits are established for each customer and reviewed periodically. The
Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade and other receivables. The management uses a
simplified approach for the purpose of computation of expected credit loss for trade receivables.

Summary of ageing of trade receivable

(* in Millions)

Particulars S e T R e a e " Past due :
Up to 12 months ~ |1to2 Year Above 2 years  [Total
\s at March 31, 2025 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Provision for loss allowance is accounted for basis the following:

Particulars e o EREE S e ~ Pastdue
Up to 12 months 1t0 2 Year Above 2 years  |Total
\s at March 31, 2025 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

The Company does not have any historical bad debts due to newly incorporate, however the company has shown bed debts of Rs. 0.18 Million during FY 2025

Cash and bank balances
Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalent, deposits with the banks is generally low as the said deposits have been made with the banks who have been assigned
high credit rating by international and domestic rating agencies.

Others
Other than trade reccivables and others reported above, the Company has no other material financial assets which carries any significant credit risk.

: Liquidity Risk

liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they are: fallen due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s
reputation.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credi

t facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company
treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity positien (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the
basis of expected future cash flows. This is generally carried out in accotdance with practice and limits set by the Company. These limits vary by location to take
into account requirement, future cash flow and the liquidity in which the entity operates. In addition, the Company’s liquidity management strategy involves
projecting cash flows in major currencies and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance shect liquidity ratios against
internal and external regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

Financing Arrangement

I'he Company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting year:

(Rs. in Millions)

Particulars As at March 31,
2025

Floating Rate

Fxpiring within One year ( Bank Overdraft and other facilties) 35.99

lixping within one year ( Term Loan) 31.12

lixping Beyond one year ( Term Loan) 0

I'he bank facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice. Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the
bank loan facilities may be drawn at any time in Indian rupee and have an average maturity within a year.

Maturity profile of Financial liabilities

"The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted
payments (excluding transaction cost on borrowings).

Particulars Carrying Amount L:f;et:fn 1-2 Year 3-5 Years Beyond 5 Years
Period ended March 31, 2025

Borrowings 17550 117.63 7.90 28.43 21.54
Trade Payables 38.99 38.99 - = -
Total 214.49 156.62 7.90 28.43 21.54

€ Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk, such as commodity price risk and equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by

market risk include trade payables, trade receivables, borrowings, etc.

! Foreign currency risk

"T'he Company is not exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through a
forccast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. The objective of the hedges is to minimise the volatility of the rupee cash flows of highly probable
forecast transactions by hedging the foreign exchange inflows on regular basis. The Company also take help from external consultants who for views on the
currency rates in volatile foreign exchange markets. Currency risks related to the principal amounts of the Company’s foreign currency payables, are generally
hedged using derivative contracts taken by the Company. The Company does not enter into trade financial instruments including derivative financial

instruments for hedging its foreign currency risk

In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company’s policy is to ensure that its net exposure is kept to an

aceeptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short-term imbalances.

' Interest Rate Risk

"I'he Company is having Working Capital facility limit of 166 Million with Banks which including Bill discounting also. The interest rate is @ 9.25% depending

upon the change in MCRL Ratc/cho Rate

Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis

‘The Company considering the economic environment in which it operates has determined the interest rate sensitivity analysis (interest exposure at the end of
the reporting period). The Company has only working capital limits which carry floating interest rate. Sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming that the
working capital limit was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points +/- 0.50% fluctuation in interest rate is used for disclosing the sensitivity analysis.

(Rs. in Millions)

Senstivity Basis

Impact of Profit before
Tax

[nterest rates- Increased by 50 Basis points

(0.83)

Interest rates- decreaséd by 50 Basis points

0.83

I'he interest rate sensitivity analysis is done holding on the assumption that all other variables remain constant. The increase/ decrease in interest expense is

chicfly attributable to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its variable rate of borrowings.

1 Commodity price risk

Commodity price risK Tor the Company is mainly related to fluctuations in iron prices linked to various external factors, which can affect the production cost
of the Company. Since the raw material costs is one of the primary costs drivers, any adverse fluctuation in prices can lead to drop in operating margin. To

manage this risk, the Company identifying new sources of supply etc. The Company is procuring materials at spot prices. Additionally, process
related to such risks are reviewed and controlled by senior management and fuel requirement are monitored by the procurement team.

33.8 Leases

T'he Company recognizes the expenses of short-term leases on a straight-line basis over the lease term. During the year, expenses of Rs

short-term and low value leases were recognised.

There are no long term leases with the company
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WA:.£O SOLAR SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025

Capital Management

“The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants.
I'o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
T'he primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. The Company’s primary objcctive when managing capital is
to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and healthy capital ratios and safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
support its business and provide maximum returns for shareholders. The Company also proposes to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of

capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended March 31, 2025.

Ior the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other equity reserves. Net debt includes, interest
bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital as
under:

For the year
Particulars ended

March 31, 2025
Borrowings 175.50
I.ess : Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.54
Net debts 168.94
Fquity Share Capital 80.00
Other Equity 49.40
Total capital 129.40
Capital and net debt 298.34

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings.

Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of solar steel structures and trading in Balance of System (BOS) components, primarily catering to
customers in the solar power sector.

Both these activities are closely linked in terms of:

-Narure of products and services offered

-Class of customers served

-liconomic characteristics and risks

-Distribution channels and regulatory environment

These operations are managed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as a single strategic business unit, and performance is cvaluated on an
integrated basis. Accordingly, the Company has concluded that it operates in a single reportable business segment in the context of the requirements of Ind AS
108 — Operating Segments.

Information about products and Services (Rs. in Millions)
Solar Structure 3 349.84
Trading of BOS 370.70
Total Sale of Products 720.54

Information about geographical Areas

I'he Company operates primarily within India and does not have material operations outside India. Hence, no geographical segments are presented.
Information about major customers ( from external Customers)

Jior the year ended March 31, 2025, one customers of the Company constituted more than 10% of the total revenue of Company.

Changes in Liabilities from Fianancing Activities are as under:-

\s per Ind AS 7, the Company is required to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes. The Company did not have any material impact on the Statement of
Cash Flows other than the following.

A Non Cash Changes e
s at sa
Particulars y Cash Flow changes

(; April 01, 2024 S < Reclassification Others” March 31, 2025
Non Current borrowings 2 39.71 = % 39.71
Current borrowings - 135.79 - - 135.79
I'inance cost - 9.14) - - 9.14
lease Liabilities = - - - -
Total liabilities from financing activities - 166.35 : 184.64
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Notes annexed to and forming part of the financial statements as at March 31, 2025
(Amount in INR millions, exeept for share data sunless otherwise stated)

Business combination

The Board of directors approved a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) between the Company and two partnership firms namely Solar Solutions (india) and Solar Structure
(India) on 30 September 2024. Pursuant to the said BTA, the partnership firm has transferred its assets and Jiabilities to company on a going concern basis by way of slump

sale, with effect from closing of business hours of 20 June 2024 for a purchase consideration of INR 11.50 Million paid in cash ot cash equivalents.

This being a business purchase has been accounted for in accordance with the Ind AS 103 “Business Combinations” and the information about fair valuation of acquired assets

is as follows:

and assumed liabili

Particulars Amount

Assets
Property, plant and equipment =
Right-of-use assets z

Inventories &

I'rade Receivables 143.87
Cash and cash equivalents 0.17
Other financial assets 0.30
Other current assets 0.75
Other Non Current Financial Assets 145
Total Assets (A) 146.54
Liabilities
Borrowings 72.90
Provisions 749
Trade payable 49.65
Other financial liabilities 5.01
Other current liabilities -
Total Liabilities (B) 135.04
Net assets acquired (A-B) 11.50
Capital reserve =
Total consideration Paid ; 11.50
35 First Time Adoption of IND AS

These financial statements are the first financial statements of the Company prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. For all periods up to and including the period ended March 31, 2025, the Company has not prepared any
financial statements under previous GAAD, as it is a newly incorpomtcd entity. These financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2024, are the Company’s first financial
statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The Company has applied Ind AS 101 - First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards in preparing these financial
statements.

As the Company has been incorporated during the year and has not prepared any financial statements under previous Indian GAAP, there are no companative figures ot
ceconciliations required under paragraphs 23 to 25 of Ind AS 101.

Opening Ind AS Balance Sheet

The Company has prepared its opening balance sheet as at April 23, 2024, the date of transition to Ind AS. The opening balance sheet has been prepared in accordance with the
recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS.

Exemptions and exceptions availed

The Company has evaluated the optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions provided under Ind AS 101 and notes that:

«Since this is the first year of operations, nO exemptions Of exceptions are applicablc from previous GAAP.

«Accordingly, no optional exemptions under Appendix D or mandatory exceptions under Appendix B of Ind AS 101 have been applied.

»
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Notes annexed to and forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

Note ™ . 36 Disclosure of Ratios and their Elements as per the requirements of Schedule IIT to Companies Act 2013

Particulars

Numerator

Denominator

As at
March 31, 2025

As At March 31, 2024 % of Varanace

Expalanation for change in ratio
more than 25%

by

Current ratio

Current Assets

Current Liabilities

1.33

NA

100%

This 1s first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

Debt-equity ratio

Total Debt

Shareholder’s Equity

1.36

100%

This is first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

Debr service coverage ratio

Earning for Debt Service

Debt service

434

100%

This 1s first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio s
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

Return on equity ratio

Net Profits after taxes

Average  Shareholder’s

Equity

76.35%

NA

100%

This is first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

Inventory turnover ratio

Sales

Average mventory

22.85

100%

This is first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

I'rade
rato

receivables

turnover Net Sales

Average trade receivables

1.73

NA

100%

This s first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

[rade payables turnover ratio

Net Purchases

Average Trade Payables

30.36

100%

This is first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

Net capital turnover ratio

Net Sales

Working Capital

11.24

100%

This is first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

Net profit ratio

Net Profits after taxes

Net Sales

6.86%

100%

This is first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

Return on capital employed

Earning before interest and Capital Employed

taxes

69.26%

100%

This is first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

Return on mvestment

Dividend or gain on sale of Average investments

mvestments

100%

This 1s first year of operation of
company, accordingly the ratio is
available and/or ccomparable with
previous year

the
not
the

Details of numerator and denominator for computing the Ratios

II’ articulars

Items included in Numerator/Denominator

[Current Assets
Current Liabilities

Earning for Debt Service

Debrt service
Net Profits after taxes

\ver

Shareholder’s Equity
\ver
Net§

\verage trade receivables

mventory

les

Net Purchases
\verage Trade Payables
Working Capital

Ilarning before interest and taxes

Capital Employed

Trade Receivables+ Inventories+Bank balances and Cash and Cash Equivalents

Trade Payables+Short term borrowings+ other liabilities payable within 1 year
Net Profit after taxes + Non-cash operating expenses like depreciation and
other amortizations + Interest + other adjustments like loss on sale of

Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Repayments of non current borrowings

Net Profits after taxes

(Opening + Closing balance) / 2
(Opening + Closing balance) / 2

Net sales consist of gross sales minus sales return.

(Opening + Closing balance)/ 2

Net purchases consist of gross purchases minus purchase return

(Opening Creditors+ Closing Creditors )/ 2

Current assets minus current liabilities.

Profit After Tax+Depreciation and Amortization Expense+Interest+Non-Operating Expenses

Tangible Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Liability

PR
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Nore annexed to and forming part of Standalone Financial Statements

> . No. 37

N~

sation of Borrowed funds and share premium

‘I'he Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity (ies), with the understanding that the intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries) or,
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwisc) that the Unit shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or,
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

Undisclosed Income

The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 during the current and in previous year (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961). Also, there are nil previously unrecorded
mcome and related assets.

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
‘T'he Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the current and previous financial year.

Core Investment Company (CIC)
“I'he Company 1s not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. The Company has no CICs as part of the Company.

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements
"I'he Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current and previous financial year.

Details of Benami Property held
“I'here ate no proceedings which have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Properties Transactions Act,

Wilful Defaulter

‘T'he Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or Government or any Government authority.

Compliance with number of layers of companies
‘The Company has complied with the number of layers presecribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)

Registration of charge or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies
"I'he borrowings which has been taken during the year whereby charge is yet not filed with Registrar of Companies (ROC):

Relationship with struck off Companies

T'he Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

Books of accounts and backup maintenance

T'he Company has maintained proper books of account as required by law except for keeping backup on daily basis of such books of account maintained in electronic mode, in a server
physically located i India.

I'he Minsstry of Corporate Affairs (MCA') has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the
Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software
which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were
made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. Management has implemented logs at the application level to record audit trail (edit logs) of transactions in accounting
software from the beginning of the financial year and is operating effectively as at 31 March 2025.

Note 38: First Year of Operations

The company was incorporated on April 23, 2024, and current financial year is the first year of operations of the company, therefore, there is no corresponding previous year figures
available.

Note 39 : Events occurred after Balance Sheet date

No susequent event occurred post balance sheet date which requires adjustment in the standalonw financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
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